
DESERT WATER AGENCY           BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
NOVEMBER 20, 2018                                                                                REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
   REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE    
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  November 6, 2018  CIOFFI  
                                                       

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS -    A. Executive – November 13, 2018  CIOFFI 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public may speak on any item listed on the agenda 
as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on 
items not listed on the agenda.                                                                           

 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT (OCTOBER)  BLOOMER 
 

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION 
A.  Request Authorization to Enter Into Agreement (Quitclaim a Portion of Whitewater   JOHNSON 
  Mutual Water Company Right-Of-Way) 
 

B.  Request Budget Augmentation for the 2017/2018 Replacement Pipeline Project  JOHNSON 
    

C. Request Authorization for General Manager to Execute Main Extension Refund Agrmt/Horizon Gardens JOHNSON 
 

D. Request Authorization for General Manager to Execute the Delta Conveyance Finance Authority              KRAUSE 
   Joint Powers Agreement    
     

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A.  Director’s Report on NWRA Attendance                                                                                   BLOOMER, CIOFFI, STUART 

 

  B.  October Water Use Reduction Figures  PEÑA 
   
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
  

A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
      Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
     Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
     Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 

C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 

Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 

D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
   Name of Case: Albrecht et al vs. County of Riverside 
 

E.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Abbey et al vs. County of Riverside 
 
   F.   CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION       
   Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1)  
         Name of Case: Safari Park, Inc. vs. Southridge Property Owners Assoc. of Palm Springs, et al 
 



 
11/20/018 
DWA Board Agenda 
Page 2 

 
 
 
G. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: Conveyance of Easement APN No. 508-053-005 to Desert Water Agency 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians 
  Under Negotiation: Terms 
 

  H. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: APN 669-680-024, 669-191-007 and 669-191-008 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DFI Properties, LLC 

 Under Negotiation: Price and Terms 
 

11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

12. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with 
a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members, which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be 
obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8953 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 11/06/18 

   MINUTES                   
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

November 6, 2018 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
          Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President ) 
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager  ) 
 Martin Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Kris Hopping, Human Resources Manager ) 
 Xochitl Peña, Outreach & Cons. Specialist I ) 
 Esther Saenz, Accounting Supervisor ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 Bob Reeb, Reeb Government Relations, LLC ) 
    
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
                                    

Attendance 

18252.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Oygar in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
   
18253.  President Cioffi called for approval of the October 16, 2018 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
   
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Director 
Ewing, the minutes were approved as written. 
  
18254.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on October 16, Construction staff responded 
to a reported service line leak. Apparently, a vehicle backed over the 
Agency’s meter box, damaging the service line and the customer side 
plumbing. As a result, the customer’s house flooded from the leak runoff, 
which traveled downhill in the house.  
 
  Mr. Krause noted as part of the CV Link Bike Path, the City of 
Cathedral City requested the use of land owned by the Agency, adjacent to 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 10/16/18 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
Water Service Line 
Damage (Southridge 
Dr.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Well 31 Fence 
 
 

2 



8954 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/16/18 

Well 31. Staff negotiated the land use for the bike path in exchange for 
upgrading the fence at the site to “No Climb” fencing, which the City recently 
completed construction. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the Department of Water Resources (DWR) 
announced it has met its goal of completely reconstructing the main spillway 
at Oroville Dam by 11/1/18. It is now built to its original design capacity of 
270,000 cubic feet per second. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated due to stoppage of water deliveries, the 
Whitewater Hydro plant only operated for a portion of the day on October 1. 
It generated approximately 9,330 kWh, resulting in a SCE settlement amount 
of $755. As of the end of September, MWD has delivered approximately 
129,611 acre feet to the Whitewater Spreading basins. On September 26, 
MWD began water deliveries to the Mission Creek Spreading basins (MCSB) 
at a rate of 25 cfs. On November 1, MWD completed water deliveries in the 
amount of 1,630 acre feet to the MCSB; a total of 2,012 acre feet of water 
has been delivered so far this year. 
      
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted the recent media 
information from SWC, the current system leak data, and meetings and 
activities he participated in during the past several weeks.  
 
18255.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the October 30, 2018 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
18256.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public comment. 
       
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period.   
 
18257.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to present 
the request for Adoption of Resolution No. 1193 Adopting an Amended 
Appendix of the Agency’s Conflict of Interest Code. 
 
  Mr. Riddell stated that the Agency is required to review its 
Conflict of Interest Code biennially and amend it if necessary to comply with 
current legislation. The proposed amendment includes new positions, deletes 
abolished positions, revises titles and adds a new disclosure category. It is 
requested that the Board adopt Resolution No. 1193. 
 
  Director Ewing moved to adopt Resolution No. 1193 Adopting 
an Amended Conflict of Interest Code. Vice President Stuart seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
 
 

General Manager’s 
Report (Cont.) 
Well 31 Fence 
 
 
 
Oroville Dam’s Main 
Spillway Completed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Whitewater Hydro & 
SWP Delivery Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWC Media, 
System Leak Data,  
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities  
 
 
Committee Reports: 
Executive 10/30/18 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Action Items: 
Resolution No. 1193 
Amending Conflict of 
Interest Code 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8955 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/16/18 

RESOLUTION NO. 1193 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY ADOPTING AN AMENDED  
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE PURSUANT TO 

THE POLITICAL REFORM ACT OF 1974 
 
18258.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s request for authorization for the General Manager to execute 
the Right of Way agreement for Conveyance of real property and Escrow 
Instructions, Grant Deed for Ramon Road property, Temporary Construction 
Easement agreement and the Temporary Construction easement. 
   
  Mr. Johnson stated the City of Palm Springs is seeking to 
purchase real property owned by the Agency and a temporary construction 
easement over a portion of the Agency’s property for the construction of its 
Ramon Road Bridge Widening project. The City would like to acquire 
approximately 481 square feet and a five-year temporary construction 
easement of approximately 1,293 square feet over Agency property APN 
677-420-024, for the sum of $4,300. Staff requests Board authorization for 
the General Manager to execute the Right of Way agreement for Conveyance 
of Real Property and Escrow instructions, Grant Deed for Ramon Road 
Property, Temporary Construction Easement agreement and the Temporary 
Construction easement. 
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval of staff’s recommendation. 
Director Ewing seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
18259.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the October 18, 2018 Board of Directors of the State Water 
Contractors, Inc. 
 
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) Closed 
Session, 2) Board Action Items, 3) Energy Update, and Water Supply 
Update. 
 
18260.  President Cioffi asked Mr. Reeb to present his 2018 Annual 
Legislative Report. 
 
  Mr. Reeb provided a highlight of his report and discussed the 
following items: 1) 2018 General Elections, 2) SB 998, 3) AB 3206, 4) SB 
485, and 5) SB 966. He suggested the Legislative Committee meet with 
Assemblyman Garcia in the near future. 
 
  President Cioffi requested Mr. Reeb join the Legislative 
Committee once a meeting date is confirmed with Assemblyman Garcia. 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Resolution No. 1193 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Board 
Authorization – 
Execute ROW Agrmt. 
Conveyance of Real 
Property 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
10/18/18 SWC Mtg. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2018 Legislative Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8956 
 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 10/16/18 

18261.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach & 
Conservation reports for October. He then welcomed Xochitl Peña, Outreach 
& Conservation Specialist I. 
 
18262.  At 9:28 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session for 
the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District 
vs. Desert Water Agency, (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54959.9 (d) (1), Albrecht et al vs. County of Riverside; (E) 
Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54959.9 (d) (1), 
Abbey et al vs. County of Riverside; (F) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Safari Park, Inc. vs. Southridge 
Property Owners Association of Palm Springs, et al., and (G) Real Property 
Negotiators – Conveyance of Easement, Parties: DWA and ACBCI. 
   
18263.  At 10:33 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
18264.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:34 a.m. 
      ___________________________                                                           
      James Cioffi,  President 
 
ATTEST: 
_____________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Outreach & 
Conservation – Oct.  
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C.  Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
D. Existing Litigation – 
Albrecht et al vs. 
Riverside County 
E. Existing Litigation – 
Abbey et al vs. 
Riverside County 
F. Existing Litigation – 
Safari Park, Inc. vs. 
Southridge Property 
Owners Assoc. of Palm 
Springs, et al 
G. Real Property 
Negotiators – 
Conveyance of 
Easement APN 508-
053-005 
Parties: DWA and 
ACBCI 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
Adjournment  

 



3 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

NOVEMBER 20, 2018 
 
 

Damaged Block Wall – Well #5 
 
On November 9, at approximately 7:30 p.m. DWA construction staff responded to a reported 
damaged block wall at Well #5 (Intersection of Avenida Caballeros & Alejo Road).  When staff 
arrived, there was no vehicle or police on site.  The Agency filed a police report.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Hit Fire Service – 67575 Canyon Plaza in Cathedral City 
 
On November 10, at approximately 2:25 a.m. DWA construction stand-by responded to the report 
of a damaged 8-inch fire service.  Staff shut the service off, notified the customer and fire department 
that the fire service was out of order.  The customer requested and gave authorization to the Agency 
to replace the fire service. Once the fire service has been replaced and it passes disinfection testing, 
the Agency will put it back into service.  The water loss was from a one-inch service which ran for 
approximately 30 minutes.  A police report was filed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Human Resources Activities: 
 
October 16, 2018                  Laboratory Director Interviews 
October 17, 2018                  United Way Board Meeting 
October 23, 2018                  New Employee Orientation for one new employee 
October 24, 2018                  Retirement Party for Beth Amheiser 
October 31, 2018                  New Employee Orientation for four new employees 
November 6, 2018                New Employee Orientation for one new employee 
November 7, 2018                United Way Executive Board Meeting 
November 8, 2018                HR Virtual Summit 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STREET NAME NUMBER OF LEAKS

PIPE DIAMETER 

(INCHES) YEAR INSTALLED PIPE MATERIAL

PIPE 

CONSTRUCTION

LIVMOR AVE 4 4 AND 6 1955 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

VIA ALTAMIRA 2 4 1954/1947 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

AVENIDA CABALLEROS 2 20 1949 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

ALEJO RD 1 12 1960 STEEL CEMENT LINED

CALLE PALO FIERRO 1 4 1947 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

VIA VAQUERO 1 4 1958 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

VISTA CHINO 1 20 1949 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

DESERT PALMS DR 1 4 1946 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

INDIAN CANYON DR 1 6 1951 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

S PALM CANYON DR 1 10 1938 STEEL BARE/UNLINED

TOTAL LEAKS IN SYSTEM: 15

* Streets highlighted in blue are being proposed as part of the

2018/2019 Replacement Pipeline Project

1925

1952

66 YEARS

68 YEARS

303,391

14,500

21 YEARS

1960

* THIS PIPELINE IS BEING REPLACED AS PART OF THE 2018/2019 REPLACEMENT PIPELINES PROJECT.

** PLEASE NOTE THIS FIGURE REPRESENTS THE AVERAGE LINEAR FOOTAGE OF PIPELINE REPLACED

ANNUALLY GIVEN AN AVERAGE ANNUAL BUDGET OF $3 MILLION.

PROJECTED TIME FRAME FOR 100% REPLACEMENT OF UNLINED STEEL PIPE:

**AVERAGE LENGTH OF PIPE REPLACED ANNUALLY (LINEAR FEET):

YEAR AGENCY TRANSITIONED TO CEMENT LINED STEEL PIPE:

TOTAL LENGTH OF UNLINED PIPE SYSTEMWIDE (LINEAR FEET):

SYSTEM LEAK DATA

(PERIOD BEGINNING OCTOBER 31, 2018 THRU NOVEMBER 13, 2018)

*OLDEST PIPE IN THE SYSTEM (YEAR OF INSTALLATION):

AVERAGE AGE OF UNLINED STEEL PIPE (SYSTEMWIDE):

AVERAGE YEAR OF INSTALLATION OF UNLINED STEEL PIPE (SYSTEMWIDE):

SYSTEM INFORMATION:

AVERAGE AGE OF PIPELINE AT THE TIME OF REPLACEMENT:





 
  
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 

11/06/18 Quarterly Mission Creek Management Committee Meeting CVWD 
11/07/18 NWRA Conference S.D. 
11/08/18 NWRA Conference S.D. 
11/08/18 S.C. Village Water Filtration Plant Design Meeting Conf. Call 
11/09/18 NWRA Conference S.D. 
11/13/18 Bi-Monthly Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
11/13/18 Staff/I.S./Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
11/14/18 SWC’s Monthly Delta Committee Meeting SAC. 
11/14/18 SWC’s Monthly Policy Dinner Meeting SAC. 
11/15/18 SWC’s Monthly Board Meeting SAC. 
11/16/18 Sites Reservoir Monthly Committee Meeting MAX. 
11/19/18 Staff/I.S./Security Weekly Meeting DWA 
11/20/18 Bi-Monthly DWA Board Meeting DWA 
11/20/18 SGP-Subbasin-GSA Monthly Workgroup Meeting SGPWA 

 
Activities: 
 

1) Outreach Talking Points – KESQ 
2) Whitewater Hydro – Automatic Re-start 
3) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 

(Standing) 
4) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
5)  Lake Oroville Spillway Damage 
6)  Replacement Pipelines 2018-2019 
7)  CWF – Finance JPA Agreement 
8)  DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination/Article 21/Pool A/Pool B/Yuba Water 
9)  DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
10)  SWP 2018 Water Supply 
11)  ACBCI Lawsuits 
12)  Lake Perris Dam Remediation 
13)  Section 14 Pipeline Easements 
14)  DOI Regulation 
15)  Repair of Facility Access Roads Damaged in the September 10 Storm (Araby) 
16)  Whitewater Hydro Operations Coordination with Recharge Basin O&M 
17)  SGMA Tribal Stakeholder Meetings 
18)  Whitewater Spreading Basins – BLM Permits 
19)  Lake Perris Dam Seepage Recovery Project Participation 
20)  Cal Waterfix Cost Allocation 
21)  DWA Surface Water Filtration Feasibility Study 
22)  MCSB Delivery Updates 
23)  Well 6 Meaders Cleaners RWQB Meetings 
24)  SGMA – Indio Subbasin Classification 
25)  SGMA – San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin 
26)  Snow Creek Surface Water Filtration 
27)  UWMP Population Calculation Update 
28)  RWQCB Update to the SNMP 

 
 



4-A 
 
 
 

Minutes 
Executive Committee Meeting 

November 13, 2018 
   

 
Directors Present: Jim Cioffi, Joe Stuart     
Staff Present: Mark Krause, Martin Krieger, Steve Johnson 
 
1. Discussion Items 

 
A. Review Agenda for November 20, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 

The proposed agenda for the November 20, 2018 meeting was reviewed. 
 

B.  Expense Reports 
 The October expense reports were reviewed. 

 
2.  Other - None 
     

 3. Adjourn 
 
 

























7-A 

BoardReports/2018/Johnson 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT TO QUITCLAIM A PORTION OF THE  
 WHITEWATER MUTUAL WATER COMPANY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 
Staff received a request from a Developer to sell a portion of the Whitewater Mutual Water 
Company Right-of-Way (ROW). The portion of the ROW is coincident with N. Zanjero 
Road, adjacent to Via Escuela in the City of Palm Springs (see Exhibit “B”). The City of 
Palm Springs has made the widening of N. Zanjero Road, adjacent to the development, 
a requirement for the Developer to proceed with its project. 
 
The portion of the ROW to be quitclaimed is 33 feet by 344 feet (11,352 square feet) 
rectangle. Due to the shape of the property and zoning in the area, and the parcel being 
coincident with N. Zanjero Road, the parcel by itself is virtually undevelopable. The 
Developer commissioned an appraisal of the ROW, which indicated the property had no 
market value. Subsequently a price of $2.50/sf was negotiated with the developer, which 
takes into account the risk of losing the property to another developer and the market 
value for raw land in that area of Palm Springs. 
 
Staff has written a Purchase Agreement with the Developer such that the Agency will first 
quitclaim the parcel to the Developer for $28,300: the Developer will then grant the 
Agency a pipeline easement over the parcel which will ensure that the Agency has prior 
rights over the parcel.  After the quitclaim and easement are complete, the Developer will 
construct the road and sidewalk. The Developer will then transfer a portion of the parcel 
to the City of Palm Springs for use as a public road.  
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into the Purchase 
Agreement with the Developer; and, after the Agreement has be finalized, authorize the 
General Manager to sign the quitclaim to transfer the surplus property to the Developer.  
 
 



Legend    

Parcel "A"

500 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google





7-B 
STAFF REPORT 

 TO 
 DESERT WATER AGENCY  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

NOVEMBER 20, 2018 
 
 
RE: RECOMMENDATION OF CONTRACT AUGMENTATION FOR THE 

2017/2018 REPLACEMENT PIPELINE PROJECT  
 
On May 1, 2018 Borden Excavating was awarded the contract for constructing the 
2017/2018 Replacement Pipeline Project in the amount of $3,195,525.00. The 2017/2018 
Capital Improvement Budget includes Work Order No. 17-111--12, -08 in the total amount 
of $3,447,000 for project engineering, overheads, construction and inspection. Surplus 
money from the 2016/2017 replacement pipeline budget in the amount of $155,743 was 
added to the budget, making the final budget amount available for the project equal to 
$3,602,743.      
 
As discussed at the May 1, 2018 Board meeting, staff anticipated the total project costs 
to be approximately $3,700,000. To date, the total amount spent on the project is 
$2,249,037. Staff estimates that the total project costs will be approximately $3,830,000, 
to include two change orders in the amount of $31,005. This estimate is $227,257 over 
the total budget for the project. 
 
The City of Palm Springs would like to begin their street rehabilitation work within Michelle 
Road and Debby Drive.  The water mains located in these streets were installed in 1956 
and are 4” diameter unlined bare steel and have had 26 leaks this year. Agency staff 
recommended to the City that these streets be removed from the rehabilitation schedule 
this year. The City removed the streets from the primary work schedule, however, kept 
the streets on their supplemental bid list. The City received much lower than estimated 
bid amounts for their primary schedule and was able to add supplemental streets to the 
overall project to include Michelle Road and Debby Drive.  
 
Based on the condition of the mains within Michelle Road and Debby Drive, staff would 
like to add Michelle Road and Debby Drive to the current replacement pipeline project. 
Although Borden Excavating is wrapping up the current contract work, the project 
manager from Borden did state that they will be willing to perform these streets for the 
values based on the current contract bid schedule. Using current contract bid values, staff 
have determined an estimated cost in the amount of $450,000, to include engineering, 
construction, and inspection for Michelle Road and Debby Drive. If approved, work will 
begin the week of November 26, with a completion date of December 14.  
 
Staff recommends augmenting the 2017/2018 replacement pipeline budget in the amount 
of $450,000 to cover all costs associated with the additional costs for Michelle Road and 
Debby Drive.   



7- C 
 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

 
 

RE: REQUEST BOARD AUTHORIZATION FOR GENERAL MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE MAIN EXTENSION REFUND AGREEMENT WITH 
HORIZON GARDENS, LLC 

 
Horizon Gardens, LLC. (developer) is seeking a main extension refund agreement with 
the Agency for approximately 340 feet of ductile pipeline they will be installing for a re-
development senior living complex located within Cathedral City. The property was 
served by a private well, however, the well has been abandoned and the property 
requires a pipeline extension for domestic and fire protection purposes.   
 
The developer will be required to extend an existing Agency pipeline approximately 515 
feet, with approximately 340 feet that will front an undeveloped property. The main 
extension refund agreement stipulates that if an owner of property fronting the main 
extension requests a connection to the system to serve a portion of his/her property, the 
Agency shall be obligated to levy, collect and pay the developer that installed the 
extension a front footage connection charge per the main extension refund agreement 
terms. It also requires that the Agency is obligated to collect moneys for a period of ten 
(10) years from the date the agreement is accepted, or when the Agency accepts the 
actual mainline facilities, whichever occurs first.   
 
Attached is a copy of a main extension refund agreement, Exhibit A, showing the 
location of the Horizon Garden project and the portion of the main fronting currently un-
subdivided property that is subject to the main extension agreement, and Exhibit B,  
cost summary for the proposed extension pipeline. Based on the cost summary, the 
proposed front footage that will be collected by the Agency per the main extension 
refund agreement will be $88/L.F. This will be collected if or when the undeveloped 
property requests water service. If, after ten years, water service is not required, the 
agreement will expire and the Agency will no longer be obligated to collect the money 
for the developer.  
 
Staff requests that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute a main 
extension refund agreement with Horizon Gardens, LLC.   











Legend    

Horizon Gardens Project

800 ft

N

➤➤

N
© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google

© 2018 Google



Exhibit “B” 
Job Cost and Refund Computation 

APN:  681-310-031 
67670 Carey Road,  
Cathedral City, CA 

W.O. 18-805 
 

MAINS:  514’ – 8” Ductile Iron Pipe @$176.00/lf    
SERVICES          
FIRE SERVICE         
FIRE HYDRANTS         

 
Net Cost to Developer       

 
Less:  Non-Refundable Expenses (For Developer’s Use Only) 
MAINS: 177 ’- 8” Ductile Iron @ $176.00/lf     
SERVICES          
FIRE SERVICE         
FIRE HYDRANTS         

Total Refundable        
 
8” MAIN: 
Length of main subject to refund       
Length of main not subject to refund previously subdivided   
Cost Per Lineal Foot        
Assessment per front footage (1/2 of lineal foot)    
 
MAIN SUBJECT TO REFUND: 
South Side of Carey Rd 337’ @ $88.00      
 
TOTAL AMOUNT TO BE REFUNDED      
 
 
 
 
 

$90,464.00 
$20,000.00 
$18,000.00 
$14,000.00 

 
 $142,464.00 

 
 

($31,152.00) 
($20,000.00) 
($18,000.00) 
($14,000.00) 

 $58,432.00 
 

 
337’ 
177’ 

$176.00 
$88.00 

 
  

$29,656.00 
 

 $29,656.00

Checked: ______________________________ Accounting 
 
 
Checked: ______________________________ Operations Engineer 
 
 
Checked: ______________________________ Asst. General Manager 
 
 
 
 



7-D 

Page 1 of 1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION FOR GENERAL MANAGER TO 
 EXECUTE THE DELTA CONVEYANCE FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 

At the October 16, 2018, Desert Water Agency Board Meeting a PowerPoint presentation 
was made explaining the purpose of the Delta Conveyance Finance Authority Joint 
Powers Agreement.  The presentation focused on the key issues of the agreement such 
as membership requirements, agreement terms, decision-making procedures, how to 
withdraw from membership, and the risks and benefits of membership.  Also discussed, 
were the mechanics of the bond transactions and the flow of money between the Design 
Construction JPA (DCA), the Department of Water Resources (DWR), the State Water 
Contractors (SWCs), the Finance Authority and the Bond Holders. 
 
At present, the Agency would be responsible for approximately 1.4% of Cal WaterFix 
expenses.  The Agency expects the project to yield approximately 9,600 acre-feet of 
water at a cost of approximately $1,200 per acre-foot.  As discussed in prior Agency Board 
Meetings, this incremental water supply is vital to meeting our projected future water 
demands in the Indio and Mission Creek Sub-basins.  The Agency has already committed 
$2,176,183 in support of the California WaterFix (supplemental funding and gap funding).  
Approving the agreement and joining the Finance Authority will continue our support of 
the project by strengthening the Finance Authority’s bond fund rating and thereby 
decrease project finance costs.  It will also allow the Agency to participate in Finance 
Authority discussions and have a vote in its administrative decisions. 
 
The Agency staff will continue monitoring the progress of the California WaterFix and prior 
to incurring any significant costs, staff will report back to the Board to evaluate the risks 
and benefits of continued membership in the Finance Authority. 
 
Staff requests Board acceptance of the Delta Conveyance Authority Joint Powers 
Authority, dated July 3, 2018, and authorize the General Manager to execute said 
Agreement (attached). 



DELTA CONVEYANCE FINANCE AUTHORITY 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

Dated as of July 3, 2018 

 
 
 



 

i 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE ................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................ 1 

SECTION 3. CREATION OF AUTHORITY .................................................................. 3 

SECTION 4. PLACE OF BUSINESS. ............................................................................. 3 

SECTION 5. TERM ......................................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 6. POWERS .................................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 7. BONDS AND NOTES. .............................................................................. 6 

SECTION 8. LIMITATIONS AND CONTRIBUTION. ................................................. 6 

SECTION 9. TERMINATION OF POWERS; LIQUIDATION; DISTRIBUTION. ...... 6 

SECTION 10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS ......................................................................... 7 

SECTION 11. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ............... 7 

SECTION 12. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS .............................................. 8 

SECTION 13. OFFICERS .................................................................................................. 9 

SECTION 14. CONTRIBUTIONS; PAYMENTS; ADVANCES. .................................. 10 

SECTION 15. ADDITIONAL MEMBERS. .................................................................... 10 

SECTION 16. WITHDRAWAL OR EXCLUSION OF MEMBER ................................ 11 

SECTION 17. ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS ................................................................. 11 

SECTION 18. BREACH .................................................................................................. 12 

SECTION 19. INDEMNITY ............................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 20. SEVERABILITY. ..................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS; AMENDMENTS. ............................... 12 

SECTION 22. NOTICES .................................................................................................. 13 

SECTION 23. OTHER OBLIGATIONS. ........................................................................ 13 

SECTION 24. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS ..................................................... 13 

 
 
 



 

1 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

DELTA CONVEYANCE FINANCE AUTHORITY 

THIS AGREEMENT, dated as of and effective on July 3, 2018, is made and entered into by and 
among Alameda County Water District, Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District, Zone 7, and San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency.  Additional Public Water Agencies may 
execute and become members as specified in Section 15 below.  

W I T N E S S E T H : 

WHEREAS, each Member is a Public Water Agency and is empowered by law to acquire, 
construct, finance, maintain and operate facilities for the delivery of water for public or private use 
and all rights, properties and improvements necessary therefor; and 

WHEREAS, each Member desires to enter into an agreement to create a separate public 
entity pursuant to the provisions of the Joint Powers Act for the purpose set forth herein and desires 
that such separate public entity have the powers provided herein in connection with such purpose; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Members, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
agreements herein contained, do hereby agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. PURPOSE.  This Agreement is made pursuant to the provisions 
the Joint Powers Act, to create a separate public entity to: (1) exercise Common Powers, and (2) 
exercise Additional Powers; in each case as determined from time to time by the Board. It is 
explicitly recognized that it is intended that the Finance Authority, in exercising its powers, will 
serve as an issuer of Bonds for the benefit of a Member or Members in implementing the 
Conveyance Project in the public interest.  

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS.  In addition to the other terms defined herein, the 
following terms, whether in the singular or in the plural, when used herein and initially capitalized, 
shall have the meanings specified. 

(a) Additional Powers.  Such powers, in addition to the Common Powers, as are 
granted or otherwise available to the Finance Authority pursuant to the Joint Powers Act or any 
other applicable law, whether currently in force or hereafter enacted. Such powers include those 
provided in the Marks-Roos Local Bond Pooling Act of 1985, as amended, constituting Article 4 
of the Joint Powers Act, including but not limited to, the power to issue and purchase debt 
obligations issued by, or to make loans to, the Members or other agencies or enter into various 
other financing arrangements as authorized under the Joint Powers Act, and to sell bonds so issued 
or purchased to public or private purchasers at public or negotiated sale. To the extent not already 
constituting Common Powers, the Additional Powers shall include without limitation, the Powers 
described in Section 6 hereof. 

(b) Additional Project Amounts.  The term “Additional Project Amounts” means the 
amount of payments made by a Member to the California Department of Water Resources for the 
construction of California WaterFix “CWF”) in exchange for a right to use capacity in CWF 



 

2 

(“CWF Capacity Right”) (other than any payments made under a State Water Contract relating to 
the State Water Project); provided, however, if any Member is assigned any CWF Capacity Right 
from another Member and the assignee Member makes payments to the assignor Member for such 
CWF Capacity Right, then the amount of such payments shall constitute the Member Support 
Amount of solely the assignee Member. 

(c) Bonds.  Bonds, notes and any other evidence of indebtedness issued or incurred by 
the Finance Authority pursuant to any applicable provision of the Joint Powers Act or any other 
lawful authority. 

(d) Central Valley Project.  The term “Central Valley Project” means the federal 
reclamation project operated by the United States Bureau of Reclamation pursuant to federal 
reclamation law (Act of June 17, 1902 (32 Stat. 388)) and acts amendatory or supplementary 
thereto. 

(e) Common Powers.  The legal powers which are common to the Members under 
applicable laws of the State, including but not limited to, those powers of the Members in 
connections with the issuance of Bonds, the expenditure of proceeds of Bonds and the borrowing 
and lending of money. 

(f) Conveyance Project.  The term “Conveyance Project” shall mean the project 
described in Section 2(a) of the JEPA, including facilities for conveying and delivering water for 
public or private uses and all rights, properties and improvements necessary therefor, including 
fuel and energy facilities and resources, and buildings, structures, improvements and facilities 
appurtenant thereto or provided therefor together with land necessary therefor 

(g) DCA Agreement.  The term “DCA Agreement” shall mean the Joint Powers 
Agreement, dated May 14, 2018, which formed the Delta Conveyance Design and Construction 
Joint Powers Authority. 

(h) DCA.  The term “DCA” shall mean the joint exercise of powers agency formed by 
the DCA Agreement. 

(i) Finance Authority.  The term “Finance Authority” shall mean the separate public 
entity created by this Agreement. 

(j) Financial Commitment Amount.  The term “Financial Commitment Amount” 
shall mean, initially, one (1), and from and after the first issuance of Bonds by the Finance 
Authority, a fraction, the numerator of which is the total Member Support Amount of the Member 
selecting the applicable Director, and the denominator of which is the sum of the total principal 
amount of Bonds then outstanding and the aggregate amount of all Additional Project Amounts of 
all Members. 

(k) Fiscal Year.  The term “Fiscal Year” shall mean the Fiscal Year of the Finance 
Authority as established from time to time by the Board of Directors, being at the date of this 
Agreement the period from July 1 to and including the following June 30. 



 

3 

(l) JEPA.  The term “JEPA” shall mean the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, 
between the Department of Water Resources, State of California and the DCA to design and 
construct the California WaterFix conveyance facilities. 

(m) Joint Powers Act.  The Joint Exercise of Powers Act, constituting Articles 1 
through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California 
Government Code as in effect on the effective date of this Agreement, as the same may be amended 
and supplemented.  

(n) Member.  The term “Member” shall mean (1) the Public Water Agencies that 
execute this Agreement on or before the date first above written; (2) a Public Water Agency which 
shall have met the requirements of Section 15 hereof; or (3) a successor of a Public Water Agency 
referred to in Section 21.  The term “Member” shall, however, exclude any Public Water Agency 
which shall have withdrawn or been excluded from the Finance Authority pursuant to Section 16 
hereof. 

(o) Member Support Amount.  The term “Member Support Amount” shall mean, 
with respect to any Member, the sum of (1) the original principal amount of Bonds that a Member 
has undertaken by agreement to pay by installment purchase agreement, and (2) without 
duplication with amounts described in clause 1 of this definition, any Additional Project Amounts 
of such Member. 

(p) Powers.  Collectively, the Common Powers and the Additional Powers. 

(q) Public Water Agency. The term “Public Water Agency” shall mean (1) a public 
agency that has entered into an agreement with the California Department of Water Resources for 
water supply from the State Water Project or an agreement with the Federal Bureau of Reclamation 
for water supply from the Central Valley Project or (2) a member unit of Kern County Water 
Agency.  

(r) State Water Project.  The term “State Water Project” means the State Water 
Facilities, as defined in California Water Code section 12934(d). 

SECTION 3. CREATION OF AUTHORITY.  Pursuant to the Joint Powers 
Act, there is hereby created a public entity, to be known as the “Finance Authority”, and said 
Finance Authority shall be a public entity separate and apart from the Members.  The effective 
date of this Agreement shall be July 3, 2018. 

Within 30 days after the effective date of this Agreement or any amendment hereto, the 
Secretary shall cause a notice of this Agreement or amendment hereto to be prepared and filed 
with the office of the Secretary of State of the State of California in the manner set forth in Section 
6503.5 of the Joint Powers Act. 

 
SECTION 4. PLACE OF BUSINESS. The business office of the Finance 

Authority shall be at 1121 L Street, Suite 1045, Sacramento, CA 95814, Sacramento, CA 95814, 
or at such other place as may later be designated by the Board of Directors. 



 

4 

SECTION 5. TERM.  This Agreement shall become effective as of the date 
hereof and, subject to the right to rescind provided by Section 9 hereof, shall continue in full force 
and effect for a period of fifty (50) years from the date hereof or until such later date as all bonds 
and notes of the Finance Authority and the interest thereon shall have been paid in full or adequate 
provision for such payment shall have been made in accordance with the instruments governing 
such bonds and notes. 

SECTION 6. POWERS.  The Finance Authority has all Powers necessary or 
convenient, specified or implied, to the accomplishment of the purposes of this Agreement, subject 
to the restrictions set for in this Section. The enumeration of any Powers herein shall not limit the 
generality or scope of the Powers granted to the Authority pursuant to this Section, the definition 
of Common Powers, the definition of Additional Powers, or the grant of any other powers 
otherwise available to the Authority as a separate public entity pursuant to the Joint Powers Act or 
any other applicable law whether currently in force or hereafter enacted. Without limiting the 
generality of the Powers conferred in this Section, the Finance Authority is hereby authorized, in 
its own name, to do all acts necessary or convenient to the accomplishment of the purposes of this 
Agreement and the full exercise of the Powers conferred in this Section, including, but not limited 
to, any or all of the following: 

(a) To finance or assist in the financing of the planning, development, acquisition, 
construction, improvement, management, maintenance or operation of the Conveyance Project, or 
any interest therein, to act as agent, and to sell, deliver, exchange, and otherwise dispose of any 
interest the Authority may have or acquire in the Conveyance Project, including without limitation, 
any capacity or other interest in the Conveyance Project; and to purchase, lease or otherwise 
acquire and equip, maintain, operate, sell, assign, convey, lease and otherwise dispose of facilities 
or systems, or interests therein, together with all lands, buildings, equipment, and all other real or 
personal property, tangible or intangible, necessary or incidental thereto.  

(b) To acquire (by exercise of the power of eminent domain or otherwise), hold, lease 
(as lessor or lessee), sell, or otherwise dispose of any real or personal property, commodity, or 
service including, without limitation, to buy, lease, construct, appropriate, contract for, invest in, 
and otherwise acquire, and to own, hold, maintain, equip, operate, manage, improve, develop, and 
deal in and with, and to sell, lease, exchange, transfer, convey and otherwise dispose of, real and 
personal property of every kind, tangible and intangible, commodities (including fuel and water) 
and services; provided that the power to acquire property shall not include the power of 
condemnation of property owned or otherwise subject to use or control by any public utility within 
the State of California. 

(c) To make and enter into contracts with any Member or Members, or any other entity, 
public or private, with respect to the planning, design, ownership, location, acquisition, financing, 
construction, operation or disposal of the Conveyance Project or any interest therein, and with 
respect to any other matters relating to the Conveyance Project, or the financing thereof, on such 
terms and conditions as shall be determined by the Board of Directors. 

(d) To establish or agree to establish, pursuant to any contract with respect to the 
Conveyance Project, management or other committees composed of representatives of 



 

5 

participating entities and to agree to the powers, duties, procedures and responsibilities of any such 
committee. 

(e) To make and enter into other contracts of every kind with the Members, the United 
States, any state or political subdivision thereof, and any individual, firm, association, partnership, 
corporation or any other organization of any kind. 

(f) To apply for, accept, receive and disburse state, federal or local licenses, permits, 
grants, loans, or other aid from any agency of the United States, the State or other public or private 
entities as the Finance Authority deems necessary for the full exercise of its powers. 

(g) To employ full-time and part-time employees, assistants and independent 
contractors that may be necessary from time to time to accomplish the purpose of the Finance JPA, 
including interagency agreements with Members. 

(h) To issue Bonds and otherwise to incur debts, liabilities or obligations provided that 
no such Bond, debt, liability or obligation shall constitute a debt, liability or obligation of any 
Member. 

(i) To sue and be sued in its own name. 

(j) To purchase for investment or otherwise such bonds, notes, commercial paper or 
other evidences of indebtedness issued by the Department of Water Resources of the State of 
California or any other governmental agency or entity as may be legal investments for the Finance 
Authority and to pledge any such indebtedness to the payment of any debts, liabilities or 
obligations of the Finance Authority. 

(k) To apply for letters of credit or other forms of financial guarantees in order to secure 
the repayment of Bonds and enter into agreements in connection therewith. 

(l) To engage the services of private consultants to render professional and technical 
assistance and advice in carrying out the purposes of the Finance Authority. 

(m) To employ and compensate counsel including general counsel, bond counsel and 
disclosure counsel, as well as financial consultants, municipal advisors and other advisers, in each 
case as determined appropriate by the Finance Authority in the accomplishment of the purposes of 
the Authority, including without limitation in connection with the issuance and sale of any Bonds. 

(n) To contract for engineering, construction, architectural, accounting, environmental, 
land use, or other services determined necessary or convenient by the Finance Authority in 
connection with the accomplishment of the purposes of the Finance Authority. 

(o) To take title to, and transfer, sell by installment sale or otherwise, lands, structures, 
real or personal property, rights, capacity interests, rights-of-way, easements, and other interests 
in real or personal property which the Finance Authority determines are necessary or convenient 
in connection with the accomplishment of the purposes of the Finance Authority. 

(p) To exercise any other power permitted by the Joint Powers Act. 



 

6 

To the extent required under Government Code section 6509, in the event that the 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California becomes a party to this Agreement, and upon 
approval of the Board, the Finance Authority shall exercise its powers in the manner and according 
to the methods provided under the laws applicable to the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California.  Prior to such event, to the extent required under Government Code section 6509, the 
Finance Authority shall exercise its powers in the manner and according to the methods provided 
under the laws applicable to the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency. 

SECTION 7. BONDS AND NOTES.  The Finance Authority shall also have 
the power to issue, sell and deliver, in accordance with the provisions of the Joint Powers Act, (1) 
bonds, notes or other obligations to provide funds for the acquisition, construction and/or  
financing of the Conveyance Project, including, without limitation, the financing of the purchase, 
lease or other acquisition by one or more Members of an interest in the Conveyance Project, and 
(2) refunding bonds for the purpose of redeeming or retiring any bonds issued by the Finance 
Authority and any other indebtedness incurred by the Finance Authority.  The terms and conditions 
of the issuance of any such bonds, refunding bonds or notes shall be set forth in such resolution, 
indenture or other instrument, shall include such security provisions and shall specify such source 
or sources of payment, as in accordance with law shall be determined by the Board of Directors. 

SECTION 8. LIMITATIONS AND CONTRIBUTION.   

(a) Bonds or notes issued by the Finance Authority under Section 6, and contracts or 
obligations which are entered into by the Finance Authority to carry out the purposes for which 
such bonds or notes are issued and which are payable in whole or in part from the proceeds of said 
bonds or notes, shall not constitute a debt, liability or obligation of any Member. Pursuant to 
Section 6508.1 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended, no debt, liability 
or obligation of the Finance Authority shall be a debt, liability or obligation of any Member except 
as provided by Section 895.2 of the Government Code of the State of California in the case of 
injury caused by a negligent or wrongful act or omission occurring in the performance of this 
Agreement.  

(b) Nothing in this Section contained shall in any way diminish the liability of any 
Member or other party with respect to any contract between such Member or other party and the 
Finance Authority 

SECTION 9. TERMINATION OF POWERS; LIQUIDATION; 
DISTRIBUTION.  This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, and the Finance 
Authority shall continue to possess the powers herein conferred upon it, until the expiration 
(pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement) of the term of this Agreement or until the Members shall 
have rescinded this Agreement (pursuant to this Section 9).  Rescission of this Agreement may 
only be accomplished by a writing or writings executed by each Member and approved by 
resolution of each Member’s governing body.  In no event shall this Agreement or the powers 
herein granted to the Authority be rescinded until (1) all bonds and notes of the Finance Authority 
and the interest thereon shall have been paid or adequate provision for such payment shall have 
been made in accordance with the instruments governing such bonds and notes and (2) all other 
obligations and liabilities of the Finance Authority shall have been met or adequately provided for. 



 

7 

Upon any such expiration or rescission, the Board of Directors shall liquidate the business 
and assets and property of the Finance Authority as expeditiously as possible, and distribute any 
net proceeds to any Members in such manner in accordance with law as shall be determined by 
the Board of Directors. 

SECTION 10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.   

(a) The Finance Authority shall be administered by a governing board (the “Board of 
Directors”) which shall consist of one Director representing each Member.  The Director 
representing each Member shall be a director, officer or employee of such Member.  Each Director 
will serve in his individual capacity as a member of the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors 
shall have the general management of the affairs, property and business of the Authority and may 
adopt and modify from time to time such by-laws and other rules and regulations for that purpose 
and for the conduct of its meetings as it may deem proper.  The Board of Directors may exercise 
and shall be vested with all powers of the Finance Authority insofar as not inconsistent with law 
or this Agreement. 

(b) The Board of Directors may adopt an annual budget for administrative expenses, 
which shall include all expenses not included in any financing issue or Conveyance Project Matter 
of the Finance Authority, on or about July 1st of each year.  

(c) Directors may receive reasonable compensation for serving as a Director, and shall 
be entitled to reimbursement for any expenses actually incurred in connection with serving as such, 
if the Board of Directors determines that such expenses shall be reimbursed and there are 
unencumbered funds available for such purpose. 

SECTION 11. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

(a) The Board of Directors shall establish an Executive Committee comprised of the 
President, Vice President, and Secretary of the Board of Directors and shall serve at the pleasure 
of the Board.  The Board of Directors by majority vote may appoint additional Members to the 
Executive Committee.  

(b) The Executive Committee shall be responsible and is delegated authority to manage 
the administration of the affairs, property and business of the Authority, and shall carry out such 
other responsibilities as are delegated to it by the Board of Directors.  The Executive Committee 
shall study and recommend to the Board of Directors changes in procedures, plans, and programs 
as appropriate.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive Committee shall have no authority 
to approve any matter that requires the unanimous vote of the Directors under Section 12(g) of this 
Agreement. 

(c) The Executive Committee shall hold at least one regular meeting quarterly.  The 
date, time and place upon which such regular meetings shall be held, shall be fixed by the 
Executive Committee, and notice of such meetings shall be provided to each Member of the 
Authority. 



 

8 

(d) The presence of a majority of the Members of the Executive Committee shall 
constitute a quorum, except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. An affirmative 
vote of three (3) Members of the Executive Committee shall be necessary to constitute action and 
to transact business.  

(e) The Executive Committee shall develop or cause to be developed and recommend 
to the Board of Directors for approval an annual budget for the Finance Authority. 

(f) Recommendations of the Executive Committee to the Board of Directors shall be 
established upon a majority vote of the Executive Committee Members. 

(g) The Board may hire an Executive Director to assist the Executive Committee in 
carrying out its responsibilities, and/or other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board 
of Directors.  The Executive Director shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, and 
shall be compensated for his/her services, as determined by the Board of Directors. 

SECTION 12. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.   

(a) Regular Meetings.  The Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting not less 
than once each calendar year.  The date upon which, and the hour and place at which, each regular 
meeting shall be held shall be set by the Board of Directors. 

(b) Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 54956 of the Government Code of the State of 
California, as amended. 

(c) Legal Notice.  All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held subject to the 
provisions of the laws of the State of California requiring notice of meetings of public bodies to 
be given in the manner in such laws provided. 

(d) Minutes.  The Secretary of the Finance Authority shall cause to be kept minutes of 
the meetings of the Board of Directors, both regular and special, and shall, as soon as possible after 
each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director. 

(e) Quorum.  Those Directors representing a majority of the votes of the Board of 
Directors for all non-administrative matters, as calculated under subsection (f) below, shall 
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except that, if less than a majority of votes is 
present at a meeting, Directors representing a majority of votes that are present may adjourn the 
meeting from time to time.  At no time shall a quorum consist of fewer than two Directors.  

(f) Voting.  When a quorum is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors, the vote 
of the Directors present at such meeting shall decide any question brought before such meeting 
and such decision shall be deemed to be the action of the Board.  Each Director shall have the 
number of votes equal to 1,000 multiplied by its Financial Commitment Amount.  Except as 
provided in subsections (g) and (h) of this Section 12 and in Section 15(c) of this Agreement, the 
majority of votes shall decide any question.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, all administrative matters shall be decided by a majority vote, with each Director 
having one vote.  Administrative matters include, but are not limited to, actions such as, selecting 



 

9 

Board Officers, selecting additional Executive Committee Members, selecting an Executive 
Director, setting agendas, designating meeting times and places and other general matters related 
to the basic functions of the Finance Authority.  

(g) Super Majority Voting Provisions.  Any of the following matters shall require a 
vote of not less than all of the Directors: 

(i) The addition of any Public Water Agency as a new Member under Section 
15(c) of this Agreement; 

(ii) The termination of this Agreement; and 

(iii) Any action, the taking of which would cause the Finance Authority to 
breach its obligations under the contractual arrangements among the Members relating to 
the issuance of Bonds and the Conveyance Project. 

(h) Other Voting Arrangements.  No provision of this Agreement shall in any way 
restrict the ability of the Finance Authority to make and enter into from time to time contracts 
providing for representation on management or other committees with respect to the Conveyance 
Project and/or voting by the parties to such contracts on matters related thereto, on the terms 
provided therein. 

SECTION 13. OFFICERS.   

(a) At its first meeting in each calendar year, the Board of Directors shall elect a 
President, Vice President and Secretary, and appoint or reappoint a Treasurer/Controller who may, 
but need not, be selected from among the Directors.  In the event that the President, Vice President, 
Secretary or Treasurer/Controller so elected or appointed ceases (in the case of the President or the 
Vice President) to be a Director, resigns from such office or is otherwise unable to perform the 
duties of such office, the resulting vacancy shall be filled at the next regular meeting of the Board 
of Directors held after such vacancy occurs.  In the absence or inability of the President to act, the 
Vice President shall act as President.  The President, or in his absence the Vice President, shall 
preside at and conduct all meetings of the Board of Directors. 

(b) The Treasurer/Controller is designated as the treasurer and the controller of the 
Finance Authority and as such (1) shall be the depositary of the Finance Authority to have custody 
of all the money of the Finance Authority, from whatever source, (2) shall draw warrants to pay 
demands against the Finance Authority when the demands have been approved by the President or 
the Vice President of the Finance Authority, and (3) shall have the other powers, duties and 
responsibilities of such officers as specified in Section 6505.5 of the Government Code of the State 
of California, as amended, except insofar as such powers, duties and responsibilities are assigned 
to a trustee appointed, as is provided for and authorized by Section 6558 of the Government Code 
of the State of California, as amended, pursuant to any resolution, indenture or other instrument 
providing for the issuance of bonds or notes of the Finance Authority pursuant to Section 6 of this 
Agreement. 

(c) The President, the Vice President and (to the extent such officer’s duties and 
responsibilities pursuant to the Joint Powers Act require) the Treasurer/Controller are designated 



 

10 

as the public officers or persons who have charge of, handle, or have access to any property of the 
Finance Authority, and each such officer shall file an official bond with the Secretary of the 
Finance Authority in the amount of $100,000. 

(d) In addition to the powers, duties and responsibilities provided herein or by law, the 
President, the Vice President and the Secretary shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities 
as are provided in the by-laws of the Finance Authority.  The Treasurer/Controller shall have such 
powers, duties and responsibilities as are provided herein or by law. 

(e) The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint an Executive Director, who 
shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities as may be provided in the by-laws of the 
Finance Authority and as specified in section 11(g) of this Agreement. 

(f) The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint a General Counsel.  The 
General Counsel will report to the Board of Directors.  

(g) The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint such other officers and 
employees as it may deem necessary, any of whom may be employees of a Member, and who shall 
have such powers, duties and responsibilities as are determined by the Board of Directors. 

SECTION 14. CONTRIBUTIONS; PAYMENTS; ADVANCES.  In 
accordance with Section 6504 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended, the 
Members shall make such contributions, payments and advances to the Finance Authority as are 
approved from time to time by the Board of Directors, provided that only Members who vote to 
approve such contribution, payment and advance by a Member shall be obligated to make any such 
contribution, payment or advance.  The Finance Authority may make such arrangements relative 
to the repayment or return to the Members of such contributions, payments and advances as are 
approved from time to time by the Board of Directors. Notwithstanding this section, any 
administrative action taken under section 12(f) that would require the Finance Authority to incur 
costs will be allocated equally amongst the Members.  Costs of non-administrative matters, which 
include, but are not limited to, costs related to financing such as costs of bond counsel, financial 
advisors, underwriting costs, custodian costs, rating agency costs, and arbitrage consultant costs, 
shall be apportioned based on the Members’ Financial Commitment Amount.  

Any Member which fails to make or pay when due any required contribution, payment or 
advance to the Finance Authority, may have its rights under this Agreement terminated and may 
be excluded from participation in the Authority as provided in Section 16 of this Agreement. 

SECTION 15. ADDITIONAL MEMBERS.  Any Public Water Agency may 
become a Member as follows: 

(a) Within five months of the effective date of this Agreement, any Public Water 
Agency may execute this Agreement and become a Member if the governing body of the Public 
Water Agency adopts a resolution (at or before the time of its execution of this Agreement) which, 
(1) authorizes such Public Water Agency to commit to financially supporting any Bonds issued by 
the Finance Authority or which expresses an intention to do so at  later date, and (2) approves the 
execution by such Public Water Agency of this Agreement. 



 

11 

(b) Except for Public Water Agencies that become Members pursuant to the provisions 
of subparagraph (a) above, a Public Water Agency may become a Member by filing with the Board 
of Directors a certified copy of a resolution of its governing body whereby the Public Water 
Agency (1) agrees to the provisions of this Agreement and (2) requests to become a Member. 

(c) Except for Public Water Agencies that become Members pursuant to the provisions 
of subparagraph (a) above, if a Public Water Agency requests to be a Member under subparagraph 
(b), such Public Water Agency will not become a Member until its admission is approved at a 
regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors by unanimous vote. 

(d) Upon satisfying the requirements of subparagraph (a) or the requirements of 
subparagraph (b) and (c), the Public Water Agency shall become a Member for all purposes of this 
Agreement. 

SECTION 16. WITHDRAWAL OR EXCLUSION OF MEMBER 

(a) Any Member may withdraw from the Finance Authority upon the following 
conditions:  (1) the Member shall have filed with the Board of Directors a certified copy of a 
resolution of its governing body expressing its desire to so withdraw and (2) if the Finance 
Authority, prior to the filing of such resolution, shall have incurred any obligation payable from 
contributions, payments or advances in accordance with Section 14 hereof which obligation 
matures after the date of such filing, the withdrawing Member shall have paid, or made 
arrangements satisfactory to the Board of Directors to pay, to the Finance Authority its pro rata 
portion of such obligation. 

(b) Upon compliance with the conditions specified in subsection (a) of this Section 16, 
the withdrawing Member shall no longer be considered a Member for any reason or purpose under 
this Agreement and its rights and obligations under this Agreement shall terminate.  The 
withdrawal of a Member shall not affect any obligations of such Member under any contract 
between the withdrawing Member and the Finance Authority. 

SECTION 17. ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS.  There shall be strict 
accountability of all funds and reporting of all receipts and disbursements of the Finance Authority.  
The Finance Authority shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts as may be required 
by good accounting practice or by any provision of any resolution, indenture or other instrument 
of the Finance Authority securing its bonds or notes, except insofar as such powers, duties and 
responsibilities are assigned to a trustee appointed pursuant to such resolution, indenture or other 
instrument.  The books and records of the Finance Authority shall be open to inspection at all 
reasonable times to each Member and its representatives.  The Finance Authority, within 180 days 
after the close of each Fiscal Year, shall give a complete written report of all financial activities 
for such Fiscal Year to the Members. 

The Board of Directors shall cause an annual independent audit of the accounts and records 
of the Finance Authority to be made by a certified public accountant or public accountant, all in 
accordance with, and at the time or times required by, law. 

All the books, records, accounts and files referred to in this Section 17 shall be open to the 
inspection of holders of bonds or notes of the Finance Authority to the extent and in the manner 



 

12 

provided in the resolution, indenture or other instrument providing for the issuance of such bonds 
or notes. 

SECTION 18. BREACH.  If default shall be made by any Member in any 
undertaking contained in this Agreement, such default shall not excuse such Member or any other 
Member from fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement and each Member shall continue to 
be liable for the payment of contributions, payments and advances pursuant to Section 14 hereof 
and the performance of all conditions herein contained.  Each Member hereby declares that this 
Agreement is entered into for the benefit of the Finance Authority created hereby and each Member 
hereby grants to the Finance Authority the right to enforce by whatever lawful means the Finance 
Authority deems appropriate all of the obligations of each of the Members hereunder.  Each and 
all of the remedies given to the Finance Authority hereunder or by any law now or hereafter 
enacted are cumulative and the exercise of one right or remedy shall not impair the right of the 
Finance Authority to any or all other remedies. 

SECTION 19. INDEMNITY 

(a) Indemnity by Finance Authority for Litigation Expenses of Officer, Director or 
Employee. To the extent permitted by law, the Board of Directors may authorize indemnification 
by the Finance Authority of any person who is or was a member of the Board of Directors, or an 
officer, employee or other agent of the Finance Authority, and who was or is a party or is threatened 
to be made a party to a proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was such a member 
of the Board, or officer employee or other agent of the Authority, against expenses, judgments, 
fines, settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such 
proceedings 

(b) Indemnity by Finance Authority for Litigation Expenses of a Member. To the full 
extent permitted by law, the Board of Directors may authorize indemnification by the Finance 
Authority of a Member who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to a proceeding 
by reason of the fact that such entity is or was a Member of the Finance Authority against expenses, 
judgments, fines settlements and other amounts and reasonably incurred in connection with such 
proceedings. Any obligations pursuant to this Section shall be borne by the Finance Authority and 
shall be a charge against any unencumbered funds of the Finance Authority available for the 
purpose. 

SECTION 20. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any term, covenant or 
condition of this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition, shall be held 
invalid as to any person or circumstance by any court having jurisdiction in the premises, all other 
terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement and their application shall not be affected 
thereby, but shall remain in force and effect unless a court holds that the provisions are not 
separable from all other provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS; AMENDMENTS.  This 
Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the 
Members.  No Member may assign its rights or obligations as a Member of the Finance Authority 
without the consent of all other Members.  The immediately preceding sentence shall not affect, 
in any respect, any right of assignment under any contract between any Member and the Finance 



 

13 

Authority.  Subject to any requirements of law (including Section 6573 of the Government Code 
of the State of California, as amended), this Agreement may be amended at any time and from 
time to time by a writing or writings executed by each Member and approved by resolution of each 
Member’s governing body. 

SECTION 22. NOTICES.   

(a) Any notice, demand or request provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed properly served, given, or made if delivered in person or sent by registered or 
certified mail, postage prepaid, to the persons specified below: 

if to the Finance Authority: c/o Executive Director 
1121 L Street, Suite 1045 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 

if to Alameda County Water 
Agency:  

c/o General Manager 
43885 S Grimmer Blvd. 
Fremont, CA 94538 
 
 

if to Alameda County Flood 
Control and Water Conservation 
District, Zone 7 
 

c/o General Manager 
100 N. Canyons Parkway 
Livermore, CA 94551 

if to San Gorgonio Pass Water 
Agency: 
 

c/o General Manager 
1210 Beaumont Ave 
Beaumont, CA 92223 
 

 
(b) A Member may, at any time, by written notice to each other Member and the 

Finance Authority, designate different or additional persons or different addresses for giving of 
notices, demands or requests to it hereunder. 

(c) The Finance Authority may, at any time, by written notice to each Member, 
designate a different or additional person or a different address for giving of notices, demands or 
requests to it hereunder. 

SECTION 23. OTHER OBLIGATIONS.  The Members acknowledge that 
contractual arrangements outside of this Agreement, but not inconsistent to the terms of this 
Agreement, may be made among the Members relating to the assignment and disposition of any 
security or assignable interests in the Conveyance Project and the study, planning, development, 
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, improvement, or betterment of the Conveyance Project.    

SECTION 24. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be 
executed in any number of counterparts.  All such counterparts shall be deemed to be originals and 
shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 



 

14 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Members hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed and 
attested by their proper officers thereunto duly authorized, and their official seals to be hereto 
affixed, as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
   

 
 
 

Date  Alameda County Water Agency 
43885 S Grimmer Blvd. 
Fremont, CA 94538 
 
 

   
 
 
 

Date  Alameda County Flood Control and Water Conservation 
District, Zone 7 
100 N. Canyons Parkway 
Livermore, CA 94551 
 
 

   
 
 
 

Date 
 

 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
1210 Beaumont Ave 
Beaumont, CA 92223 

 



8-B 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
NOVEMBER 20, 2018 

 
RE: OCTOBER 2018 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 12% percent reduction in potable 
water production during October 2018 compared to the same month in 2013 – the 
baseline year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to 
measure statewide conservation achievements. DWA continues to report its production 
to the state on a monthly basis, despite mandatory conservation ending in 2017.  

 
DWA is asking its customers to save 10-13% compared to 2013 to help achieve long-
term sustainability.  

The cumulative savings over the last twelve-month period is 13.2%. The cumulative 
savings beginning in June of 2016 when we put our 10-13% target in place is 16.7%. 

 

On the following page is additional information for this month.  
 
 

21

14

29

33

24

15

28

18

11

15.5

10

16

10
76.25

8
6

20 21
19.5

16.5 17

5

12

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC

Savings and Targets
2016 2017 2018 Cumulative (13.2%)

Target (10-13%) 



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

October 2018 water production  2,476.67 AF 

October 2013 water production   2,809.58 AF 

Percent changed in this month per drought surcharge baseline 
(October 2015) 

-9.63% (more use) 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users for the reporting month 

779.03 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production going 
to residential use only for the reporting month 

68.55% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 106,971 

Estimated R-GPCD  166.81 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

24 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

15 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, warning 
letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

12 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation of 
conservation rules? 

0 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data on a 
per capita basis.  
 
Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent population of the service 
area; however, that data does not accurately reflect water use in DWA’s service area which 
has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the correct population is higher than 
previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per Capita Per Day (R-GPCD) is being 
submitted using the corrected population.  
 
Since Desert Water Agency began recycling water, the agency has reclaimed 98,319 acre 
feet. If our recycled water production for this month was taken into consideration against 
our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several percentage 
points higher. 
 
 


	Item 2 110618 Board Minutes.pdf
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 7A 112018 Agreement Quitclaim staff report.pdf
	Blank Page

	Item 7C 112018 Main Extension Refund Agreement.pdf
	Blank Page

	Item 7D 112018 Execute Delta Conveyance Finance Auth. Staff Report.pdf
	112018 Delta Conveyance Finance Authority Joint Powers Agreement Final.pdf
	SECTION 1. PURPOSE.  This Agreement is made pursuant to the provisions the Joint Powers Act, to create a separate public entity to: (1) exercise Common Powers, and (2) exercise Additional Powers; in each case as determined from time to time by the Boa...
	SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS.  In addition to the other terms defined herein, the following terms, whether in the singular or in the plural, when used herein and initially capitalized, shall have the meanings specified.
	(a) Additional Powers.  Such powers, in addition to the Common Powers, as are granted or otherwise available to the Finance Authority pursuant to the Joint Powers Act or any other applicable law, whether currently in force or hereafter enacted. Such p...
	(b) Additional Project Amounts.  The term “Additional Project Amounts” means the amount of payments made by a Member to the California Department of Water Resources for the construction of California WaterFix “CWF”) in exchange for a right to use capa...
	(c) Bonds.  Bonds, notes and any other evidence of indebtedness issued or incurred by the Finance Authority pursuant to any applicable provision of the Joint Powers Act or any other lawful authority.
	(d) Central Valley Project.  The term “Central Valley Project” means the federal reclamation project operated by the United States Bureau of Reclamation pursuant to federal reclamation law (Act of June 17, 1902 (32 Stat. 388)) and acts amendatory or s...
	(e) Common Powers.  The legal powers which are common to the Members under applicable laws of the State, including but not limited to, those powers of the Members in connections with the issuance of Bonds, the expenditure of proceeds of Bonds and the ...
	(f) Conveyance Project.  The term “Conveyance Project” shall mean the project described in Section 2(a) of the JEPA, including facilities for conveying and delivering water for public or private uses and all rights, properties and improvements necessa...
	(g) DCA Agreement.  The term “DCA Agreement” shall mean the Joint Powers Agreement, dated May 14, 2018, which formed the Delta Conveyance Design and Construction Joint Powers Authority.
	(h) DCA.  The term “DCA” shall mean the joint exercise of powers agency formed by the DCA Agreement.
	(i) Finance Authority.  The term “Finance Authority” shall mean the separate public entity created by this Agreement.
	(j) Financial Commitment Amount.  The term “Financial Commitment Amount” shall mean, initially, one (1), and from and after the first issuance of Bonds by the Finance Authority, a fraction, the numerator of which is the total Member Support Amount of ...
	(k) Fiscal Year.  The term “Fiscal Year” shall mean the Fiscal Year of the Finance Authority as established from time to time by the Board of Directors, being at the date of this Agreement the period from July 1 to and including the following June 30.
	(l) JEPA.  The term “JEPA” shall mean the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, between the Department of Water Resources, State of California and the DCA to design and construct the California WaterFix conveyance facilities.
	(m) Joint Powers Act.  The Joint Exercise of Powers Act, constituting Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code as in effect on the effective date of this Agreement, as ...
	(n) Member.  The term “Member” shall mean (1) the Public Water Agencies that execute this Agreement on or before the date first above written; (2) a Public Water Agency which shall have met the requirements of Section 15 hereof; or (3) a successor of ...
	(o) Member Support Amount.  The term “Member Support Amount” shall mean, with respect to any Member, the sum of (1) the original principal amount of Bonds that a Member has undertaken by agreement to pay by installment purchase agreement, and (2) with...
	(p) Powers.  Collectively, the Common Powers and the Additional Powers.
	(q) Public Water Agency. The term “Public Water Agency” shall mean (1) a public agency that has entered into an agreement with the California Department of Water Resources for water supply from the State Water Project or an agreement with the Federal ...
	(r) State Water Project.  The term “State Water Project” means the State Water Facilities, as defined in California Water Code section 12934(d).

	SECTION 3. CREATION OF AUTHORITY.  Pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, there is hereby created a public entity, to be known as the “Finance Authority”, and said Finance Authority shall be a public entity separate and apart from the Members.  The effecti...
	SECTION 4. PLACE OF BUSINESS. The business office of the Finance Authority shall be at 1121 L Street, Suite 1045, Sacramento, CA 95814, Sacramento, CA 95814, or at such other place as may later be designated by the Board of Directors.
	SECTION 5. TERM.  This Agreement shall become effective as of the date hereof and, subject to the right to rescind provided by Section 9 hereof, shall continue in full force and effect for a period of fifty (50) years from the date hereof or until suc...
	SECTION 6. POWERS.  The Finance Authority has all Powers necessary or convenient, specified or implied, to the accomplishment of the purposes of this Agreement, subject to the restrictions set for in this Section. The enumeration of any Powers herein ...
	(a) To finance or assist in the financing of the planning, development, acquisition, construction, improvement, management, maintenance or operation of the Conveyance Project, or any interest therein, to act as agent, and to sell, deliver, exchange, a...
	(b) To acquire (by exercise of the power of eminent domain or otherwise), hold, lease (as lessor or lessee), sell, or otherwise dispose of any real or personal property, commodity, or service including, without limitation, to buy, lease, construct, ap...
	(c) To make and enter into contracts with any Member or Members, or any other entity, public or private, with respect to the planning, design, ownership, location, acquisition, financing, construction, operation or disposal of the Conveyance Project o...
	(d) To establish or agree to establish, pursuant to any contract with respect to the Conveyance Project, management or other committees composed of representatives of participating entities and to agree to the powers, duties, procedures and responsibi...
	(e) To make and enter into other contracts of every kind with the Members, the United States, any state or political subdivision thereof, and any individual, firm, association, partnership, corporation or any other organization of any kind.
	(f) To apply for, accept, receive and disburse state, federal or local licenses, permits, grants, loans, or other aid from any agency of the United States, the State or other public or private entities as the Finance Authority deems necessary for the ...
	(g) To employ full-time and part-time employees, assistants and independent contractors that may be necessary from time to time to accomplish the purpose of the Finance JPA, including interagency agreements with Members.
	(h) To issue Bonds and otherwise to incur debts, liabilities or obligations provided that no such Bond, debt, liability or obligation shall constitute a debt, liability or obligation of any Member.
	(i) To sue and be sued in its own name.
	(j) To purchase for investment or otherwise such bonds, notes, commercial paper or other evidences of indebtedness issued by the Department of Water Resources of the State of California or any other governmental agency or entity as may be legal invest...
	(k) To apply for letters of credit or other forms of financial guarantees in order to secure the repayment of Bonds and enter into agreements in connection therewith.
	(l) To engage the services of private consultants to render professional and technical assistance and advice in carrying out the purposes of the Finance Authority.
	(m) To employ and compensate counsel including general counsel, bond counsel and disclosure counsel, as well as financial consultants, municipal advisors and other advisers, in each case as determined appropriate by the Finance Authority in the accomp...
	(n) To contract for engineering, construction, architectural, accounting, environmental, land use, or other services determined necessary or convenient by the Finance Authority in connection with the accomplishment of the purposes of the Finance Autho...
	(o) To take title to, and transfer, sell by installment sale or otherwise, lands, structures, real or personal property, rights, capacity interests, rights-of-way, easements, and other interests in real or personal property which the Finance Authority...
	(p) To exercise any other power permitted by the Joint Powers Act.

	SECTION 7. BONDS AND NOTES.  The Finance Authority shall also have the power to issue, sell and deliver, in accordance with the provisions of the Joint Powers Act, (1) bonds, notes or other obligations to provide funds for the acquisition, constructio...
	SECTION 8. LIMITATIONS AND CONTRIBUTION.
	(a) Bonds or notes issued by the Finance Authority under Section 6, and contracts or obligations which are entered into by the Finance Authority to carry out the purposes for which such bonds or notes are issued and which are payable in whole or in pa...
	(b) Nothing in this Section contained shall in any way diminish the liability of any Member or other party with respect to any contract between such Member or other party and the Finance Authority
	SECTION 9. TERMINATION OF POWERS; LIQUIDATION; DISTRIBUTION.  This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, and the Finance Authority shall continue to possess the powers herein conferred upon it, until the expiration (pursuant to Section 5 ...
	SECTION 10. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
	(a) The Finance Authority shall be administered by a governing board (the “Board of Directors”) which shall consist of one Director representing each Member.  The Director representing each Member shall be a director, officer or employee of such Membe...
	(b) The Board of Directors may adopt an annual budget for administrative expenses, which shall include all expenses not included in any financing issue or Conveyance Project Matter of the Finance Authority, on or about July 1st of each year.
	(c) Directors may receive reasonable compensation for serving as a Director, and shall be entitled to reimbursement for any expenses actually incurred in connection with serving as such, if the Board of Directors determines that such expenses shall be...

	SECTION 11. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
	(a) The Board of Directors shall establish an Executive Committee comprised of the President, Vice President, and Secretary of the Board of Directors and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board.  The Board of Directors by majority vote may appoint ad...
	(b) The Executive Committee shall be responsible and is delegated authority to manage the administration of the affairs, property and business of the Authority, and shall carry out such other responsibilities as are delegated to it by the Board of Dir...
	(c) The Executive Committee shall hold at least one regular meeting quarterly.  The date, time and place upon which such regular meetings shall be held, shall be fixed by the Executive Committee, and notice of such meetings shall be provided to each M...
	(d) The presence of a majority of the Members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum, except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. An affirmative vote of three (3) Members of the Executive Committee shall be necessary to...
	(e) The Executive Committee shall develop or cause to be developed and recommend to the Board of Directors for approval an annual budget for the Finance Authority.
	(f) Recommendations of the Executive Committee to the Board of Directors shall be established upon a majority vote of the Executive Committee Members.
	(g) The Board may hire an Executive Director to assist the Executive Committee in carrying out its responsibilities, and/or other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board of Directors.  The Executive Director shall serve at the pleasure o...

	SECTION 12. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
	(a) Regular Meetings.  The Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting not less than once each calendar year.  The date upon which, and the hour and place at which, each regular meeting shall be held shall be set by the Board of Directors.
	(b) Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called in accordance with the provisions of Section 54956 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended.
	(c) Legal Notice.  All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held subject to the provisions of the laws of the State of California requiring notice of meetings of public bodies to be given in the manner in such laws provided.
	(d) Minutes.  The Secretary of the Finance Authority shall cause to be kept minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors, both regular and special, and shall, as soon as possible after each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to ...
	(e) Quorum.  Those Directors representing a majority of the votes of the Board of Directors for all non-administrative matters, as calculated under subsection (f) below, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except that, if less t...
	(f) Voting.  When a quorum is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors, the vote of the Directors present at such meeting shall decide any question brought before such meeting and such decision shall be deemed to be the action of the Board.  Eac...
	(g) Super Majority Voting Provisions.  Any of the following matters shall require a vote of not less than all of the Directors:
	(i) The addition of any Public Water Agency as a new Member under Section 15(c) of this Agreement;
	(ii) The termination of this Agreement; and
	(iii) Any action, the taking of which would cause the Finance Authority to breach its obligations under the contractual arrangements among the Members relating to the issuance of Bonds and the Conveyance Project.

	(h) Other Voting Arrangements.  No provision of this Agreement shall in any way restrict the ability of the Finance Authority to make and enter into from time to time contracts providing for representation on management or other committees with respec...

	SECTION 13. OFFICERS.
	(a) At its first meeting in each calendar year, the Board of Directors shall elect a President, Vice President and Secretary, and appoint or reappoint a Treasurer/Controller who may, but need not, be selected from among the Directors.  In the event th...
	(b) The Treasurer/Controller is designated as the treasurer and the controller of the Finance Authority and as such (1) shall be the depositary of the Finance Authority to have custody of all the money of the Finance Authority, from whatever source, (...
	(c) The President, the Vice President and (to the extent such officer’s duties and responsibilities pursuant to the Joint Powers Act require) the Treasurer/Controller are designated as the public officers or persons who have charge of, handle, or have...
	(d) In addition to the powers, duties and responsibilities provided herein or by law, the President, the Vice President and the Secretary shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities as are provided in the by-laws of the Finance Authority.  The...
	(e) The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint an Executive Director, who shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities as may be provided in the by-laws of the Finance Authority and as specified in section 11(g) of this Agreement.
	(f) The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint a General Counsel.  The General Counsel will report to the Board of Directors.
	(g) The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint such other officers and employees as it may deem necessary, any of whom may be employees of a Member, and who shall have such powers, duties and responsibilities as are determined by the Board...

	SECTION 14. CONTRIBUTIONS; PAYMENTS; ADVANCES.  In accordance with Section 6504 of the Government Code of the State of California, as amended, the Members shall make such contributions, payments and advances to the Finance Authority as are approved fr...
	SECTION 15. ADDITIONAL MEMBERS.  Any Public Water Agency may become a Member as follows:
	(a) Within five months of the effective date of this Agreement, any Public Water Agency may execute this Agreement and become a Member if the governing body of the Public Water Agency adopts a resolution (at or before the time of its execution of this...
	(b) Except for Public Water Agencies that become Members pursuant to the provisions of subparagraph (a) above, a Public Water Agency may become a Member by filing with the Board of Directors a certified copy of a resolution of its governing body where...
	(c) Except for Public Water Agencies that become Members pursuant to the provisions of subparagraph (a) above, if a Public Water Agency requests to be a Member under subparagraph (b), such Public Water Agency will not become a Member until its admissi...
	(d) Upon satisfying the requirements of subparagraph (a) or the requirements of subparagraph (b) and (c), the Public Water Agency shall become a Member for all purposes of this Agreement.

	SECTION 16. WITHDRAWAL OR EXCLUSION OF MEMBER
	(a) Any Member may withdraw from the Finance Authority upon the following conditions:  (1) the Member shall have filed with the Board of Directors a certified copy of a resolution of its governing body expressing its desire to so withdraw and (2) if t...
	(b) Upon compliance with the conditions specified in subsection (a) of this Section 16, the withdrawing Member shall no longer be considered a Member for any reason or purpose under this Agreement and its rights and obligations under this Agreement sh...

	SECTION 17. ACCOUNTS AND REPORTS.  There shall be strict accountability of all funds and reporting of all receipts and disbursements of the Finance Authority.  The Finance Authority shall establish and maintain such funds and accounts as may be requir...
	SECTION 18. BREACH.  If default shall be made by any Member in any undertaking contained in this Agreement, such default shall not excuse such Member or any other Member from fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement and each Member shall contin...
	SECTION 19. INDEMNITY
	(a) Indemnity by Finance Authority for Litigation Expenses of Officer, Director or Employee. To the extent permitted by law, the Board of Directors may authorize indemnification by the Finance Authority of any person who is or was a member of the Boar...
	(b) Indemnity by Finance Authority for Litigation Expenses of a Member. To the full extent permitted by law, the Board of Directors may authorize indemnification by the Finance Authority of a Member who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a ...

	SECTION 20. SEVERABILITY.  In the event that any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition, shall be held invalid as to any person or circumstance by any court having jurisdiction in the premi...
	SECTION 21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS; AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the Members.  No Member may assign its rights or obligations as a Member of the Finance Authority wit...
	SECTION 22. NOTICES
	(a) .
	(a) Any notice, demand or request provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly served, given, or made if delivered in person or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the persons specified below:
	(b) A Member may, at any time, by written notice to each other Member and the Finance Authority, designate different or additional persons or different addresses for giving of notices, demands or requests to it hereunder.
	(c) The Finance Authority may, at any time, by written notice to each Member, designate a different or additional person or a different address for giving of notices, demands or requests to it hereunder.

	SECTION 23. OTHER OBLIGATIONS.  The Members acknowledge that contractual arrangements outside of this Agreement, but not inconsistent to the terms of this Agreement, may be made among the Members relating to the assignment and disposition of any secur...
	SECTION 24. EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts.  All such counterparts shall be deemed to be originals and shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

	Blank Page


